






18. Roadway never discussed or offered any equivalent positions in the nearest 

approximation in terms of seniority, status, and pay consistent with Bower's circumstances, as 

required by USERRA. 

USERRA CLAIMS 

19. Roadway violated 38 U.S.C. § 4311 ofUSERRA, among other ways, by 

discriminating against Bower, denying him re-employmentand other employment benefits, and 

discriminating against him (a) because of his membership, service, or obligation to perform 

service in, the uniformed services, and/or (b) because he took action to enforce a protection 

afforded him under USERRA or to exercise a right provided for in USERRA. 

20. Roadway violated 38 U.S.C. §§ 4312 and 4313 ofUSERRA, among other ways, 

by failing or refusing to: 

(a) re-employ Bower; 

(b) provide any form of accommodation for Bower; 

(c) find alternative positions equivalent in Bower's seniority, status, or pay, or offer a 

position in the nearest approximation in terms of seniority, status, and pay consistent with 

the Bower's circumstances. 

21. Roadway's violations ofUSERRA were willful, because Roadway knew or 

perceived the risk that its failure to properly reinstate Bower's employment violated that statute, 

or Roadway showed reckless disregard for the matter of whether its failure to properly reinstate 

Bower's employment was prohibited by that statute. 

22. As a result of Roadway's unlawful conduct, Bower has suffered a substantial loss 

of earnings and other benefits of employment as a result of Roadway's unlawful discrimination 
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and denial of the rights under USERRA. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Bower prays that the Court enter judgment against Roadway, its officers, 

agents, employees, successors and all persons in active concert or participation with it, as 

follows: 

23. Declare that Roadway's unlawful discrimination, denial of the right to re-

employment and denial of the right to benefits of employment were unlawful and in violation of 

USERRA; 

24. Order that Roadway fully comply with the provisions of USERRA by reinstating 

Bower to a position at the level of seniority, status and compensation that he would have enjoyed 

had he remained employed continuously with Roadway, or if Bower is not qualified due to his 

disability incurred in military service, by re-employing Bower in any other position which is 

equivalent or in nearest approximation in seniority, status and pay, and by paying Bower for his 

loss of wages and other benefits suffered by reason of Roadway's failure or refusal to comply 

with the provisions of this law; 

25. Order that Roadway pay Bower as liquidated damages an amount equal to the 

amount of his lost wages and other benefits suffered by reason of Roadway's willful failure or 

refusal to comply with the provisions of USERRA; 

26. Enjoin Roadway from taking any action against Bower that fails to comply with 

the provisions of USERRA; 

27. Award Bower prejudgment interest on the amount of lost wages found due; and 

28. Grant such other and further relief as may be just and proper together with the 
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costs and disbursements of this lawsuit. 

Dated this ~ day of ~ ,2006. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
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